

BOULDER CITY MUNICIPAL POOL AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING
September 15, 2020
(Agenda previously posted in accordance with NRS 241.O2O.3 (a))
The meeting of the Boulder City Municipal Pool Ad Hoc Committee was called to order by Chairman Kiernan McManus at 4:02 p.m., Tuesday, September 20, 2020 in the Council Chamber, City Hall, 401 California Avenue, Boulder City, Nevada.

Present:		Kiernan McManus, Chairman						
			Carol Jefferies, Member
			Martin Rihel, Member
David Cohen, Member
Valarie McNay, Member
Terri Stevens, Member
			
Also present:		Diane Pelletier, Finance Director
Keegan Littrell, Public Works Director
 			Julie Calloway, Parks & Recreation Manager
                                 
Absent:		Chad Anderson, Member
			Sara Caroll, Member
			James Adams, Vice Chairman

Chairman Kiernan McManus welcomed everyone to the Ad Hoc Pool Committee meeting on Sept. 15th, 2020. Meeting is being conducted in accordance with the emergency directives from Governor Sisolak beginning with 006, modified by 016, 018, 021 026 and 029 so the public is not present. The meeting is video streamed and public comment may have been submitted in advance. The public will also have an opportunity to call in during the meeting. 

Mr. McManus called the meeting to order and leads the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Flag Salute

Mr. McManus confirmed who is absent from the meeting and begins the public comment period. He stated comments must be limited to five minutes and to what is on the agenda. No public comments are made by those present. He opened the phone line for those wishing to call in for public comment. 


PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Fred Voltz called in. He requested his comments be added to the record verbatim (attached).

Fred Voltz greeted the committee. Speaking first to the second agenda item. While it is positive that city revenues are over 3 million dollars better than projected in fiscal year 2020, we have yet to experience the full impact on the local economy of the virus effect. Revenues from our regional tourism industry are a fraction of what they were pre-March. Multiple conventions have been canceled and occupancy rates at hotels are lucky to reach 50% on a given weekend and 25% during the week. 

Taking millions of dollars of public money needed for the long list of unfunded capital improvement projects around the City to spend on a swimming pool that is used by an average of 54 people per day hardly passes the cost benefit test. The City thinks it will receive 19 million dollars from the regional transportation commission to fix streets in 2022. He asked how this compares to the drastic loss of farebox revenue and the elimination of routes and bus frequency by the RTC to conserve cash and if Boulder City can really count on this street repair money from the RTC. He stated this financial contraction is just one example of the cascading effect on our state’s economy from the continuing restrictions. 

He added, additionally, let’s show some respect in spending priorities for our many limited income residents who are struggling and who could use a tax cut or utility rate cut rather than the Finance Director suggesting we can afford to spend frivolously on yet another underused public recreation facility. 

As for agenda item number four, it gives one cause to pause that we would hire yet another consultant for repair of the existing pool. Public works has been able to come up with a rough cost estimate for a new pool of some 33 million dollars plus interest. Why cannot public works do the same for a rebuild at the existing pool and save taxpayers this additional expense. We have had so many poor city consultant results recently, particularly the Stanchik Facilities study which gave us virtually no actionable information and did not even do a comprehensive job of inventorying buildings. 

Finally, regarding inventory item number five, it is worth reiterating that the pool committee's responsibility is not just to figure out how to build a new pool, or renovate the existing one, instead, all alternatives should be pursued to provide this service in the future for the less than 1% of residents who use the existing swimming complex. 

Suggested at past meetings has been a public transit pool pass compact with the RTC, City of Henderson, Boulder City residents, and competitive swimmers to use their expansive pool complexes. No action has been taken. This approach could give Boulderites access to excellent swimming facilities for a fraction of the cost of building a new pool or renovating the existing one. Why has not parks and recreation investigated this possibility and reported back to the committee? Please add this obvious task to future agenda items. Thank you and I would ask that my comments be added verbatim to the record of the meeting.  

Mr. McManus invited anyone else to call in for public comment. After waiting a few minutes, he closed the Public Comment period. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

1. 	For possible action: Approval of the minutes from the February 18, 2020 meeting of the Municipal Ad Hoc Pool Committee.
  
Motion: To approve the February 2020 Minutes as amended

Moved by: Member Carol Jefferies	Seconded by: Chairman Kiernan McManus

AYE: Chairman Kiernan McManus, Member Carol Jefferies, Member Martin Rihel, Member David Cohen, Member Terry Stevens, and Member Valarie McNay (6)

NAY: None (0)

Absent: Chad Anderson, Member
	    Sara Caroll, Member
	    James Adams, Vice Chairman

The motion was approved. 

2.  Presentation regarding the Boulder City Revenue Projections over the next           one to two years and the impact to the Aquatic Center Financing Plan.

Finance Director, Diane Pelletier, discussed the update on the revenue for the City for the next one to two years and the impact, if any, to the aquatic center financing plan that was proposed in January. They received applied analysis in May and since then they have revised their estimates to even better numbers than in May. The revenues for the end of the year, June 30 of this year, are 1.2 million higher than the budget and 3.1 million higher than projections for the Covid. 

The new projections for the 2020 budget have been projected and increased the C-tax numbers by 3 million in the new year. These updated revenue projections are still conservative and still do not include any potential new revenue sources that could be received during the year. 

Ms. Pelletier continued to say that the year ending June 30, 2021 use of projected fund balance went from 6.6 million to 3.5 million. She expects to get revised estimates as they receive new data. 

A booklet was provided earlier in the year that outlined financing the new pool. Nothing has changed except timing as there will not be ballot questions on the ballot this November. The plan is still valid as it does not use city resources, it uses other resources that have not been impacted by Covid. 

Ms. Jeffries asked why the fiscal revenues were higher than the original budget and wanted to know the cause. 

Ms. Pelletier responded that there was an additional permit issued by one of the solar companies which was in the amount of one million dollars which made up most of the over budget amount. 

Mr. McManus invited any other comments or questions. He observes that the budget is still 2 million dollars below what was budgeted for the year before the virus hit. 

Ms. Pelletier agreed and displays a chart showing a 20% increase each year which she describes as conservative. 20% will, hopefully, get them where they need to be. 

Mr. McManus clarified that this was something she came up with and it is not from applied analysis. 

Ms. Pelletier confirmed that is the case. 

Mr. McManus asked about the revenue sources Ms. Pelletier had planned on using was some of that money from the third phase of the Boulder Hills sales. 

Ms. Pelletier clarified and confirms that is the case. 

Mr. McManus asked about 7 million dollars in seed money. 

Ms. Pelletier stated the seed money was going to be a ballot question for the voters regarding the voter approved capital improvement fund. The fund has 9 million in it now and will probably have approximately 12 million by the end of the year. 

Mr. McManus asked about the bond and the projection of 1 million dollars listed for debt service. He wonders if this was from the capital improvement fund or general fund. He asked about the origin of the funding. 

Ms. Pelletier stated this was a ballot question to use a million dollars for the debt service or to continue the savings plan. The origin would be from the solar money lease revenue. 

Member Valerie McNay asked when the intended ballot questions would be put on a ballot as it is too late for this November. 

Mr. McManus outlined three possibilities for ballot questions: 
1. They can be done during a national election or statewide election like the one in November if they are submitted in time
2. A municipal election 
3. Special election can be called 

Member Valerie McNay sought to confirm that the 1 million extra dollars was in savings earning interest.

Ms. Pelletier confirmed that is the case. 

Member Valerie McNay clarified that nothing could be moved on until the ballot questions were made available to the public.

Ms. Pelletier stated that some actions could be taken but recommended waiting for the ballot first. 

Mr. McManus asked about the excess revenue shown on page 20 of the pool packet.  

Ms. Pelletier stated that the money was excess revenues such as this year. That money falls into the general fund, unprotected, and can be possibly used for other things. 

Ms. Pelletier suggested that action needs to be taken so the money is set aside for a specific project and not unprotected.

Mr. McManus asked what the revenue decrease is now for the projected remainder of the year with the adjusted estimates using applied analysis.

Ms. Pelletier stated 3.5 million cash in the general fund is what they would have to use. 

Mr. McManus asked if the general fund revenue is estimated at 35 million.

Ms. Pelletier stated she would have to double check as she is not sure. 

Mr. McManus confirmed the general fund revenue amount was just over 35 million. He stated that based on projections as they are looking at a 10% reduction in general fund revenue. 

Ms. Pelletier stated that they would use the general fund revenues and the general fund balance to pay the operating costs of the City. 

3. Presentation regarding capital improvement and maintenance projects at the        Municipal Pool.

Public Works Director, Keegan Littrell, discussed 

Mr. Keegan Littrell highlighted progress of some of the in-house and contracted maintenance projects the staff has worked on. They were able to hire an in-house plumber who has worked on a number of things. They have completed some extensive re-plaster work, but more plaster work needs to be done, including a full replaster project even though they have done bits and pieces throughout the years. They replaced the main roof and the racquetball roof in the past five years. The main building roof was replaced in 2019. They also replaced the pool bubble in 2013 and the ambler was replaced one year later. 

Completed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) projects include receiving a conceptual design done by SH Architecture for $109,000. They had allotted $200,000 for the project so $91,000 rolled back into the general fund. There is also another aquatic and culture center design work that would be more extensive than just the initial design but has been put on hold. They replaced the pool heater which was completed using the maintenance budget instead of CIP funds. The roof repair was completed in-house and saved $11,000 which was rolled back into the general fund. The plaster job is on the CIP but has never been funded. Other CIP items are on hold due to the reduced budget related to the virus. 

Member Valerie McNay noted that she and another member are missing from the reports and former reports are listed. She clarified that the voter approved plans are on hold. 

Mr.  Littrell responded that currently they are only moving forward with critical improvement projects. They seek approval from counsel because they do not know where the funds will be. Once they gain approval they move forward on the projects. 

Member Valerie McNay observed that the pool needs major renovations. 

Member Martin Rihel asked what the average age of a pool cover is as the pool cover was put in 2013. 

Julie Calloway, Parks and Recreation Manager, commented that the last pool cover lasted 20 years.

Member Martin observed the earliest they could start construction on a new pool would be 2022 and he wonders what the maintenance fees would be for the current pool for the next two years. 

Mr.  Littrell stated he would obtain the information for the next meeting. 

Mr. McManus observed that the filtration system has been put on hold, the recirculation water intake. Those have to do with keeping the water clean. He asks what the current status is. 

Mr.  Littrell stated they are trying to figure out how to address that as the water that goes into the overflow pipe is in really bad shape. 

Mr. McManus noted that he saw that the bubble will be installed soon.

Mr.  Littrell stated that it should be on September 30th. 

Mr. McManus asked if work would be done while the pool was drained.

Mr.  Littrell stated yes, they would work on the filtration pit.

Mr. McManus asked if there were any other items that are not on their list that should be to keep the pool open as the current pool would have to last until at least 2022. 

Julie Calloway commented that everything they know about is on the list but with this pool other things might come up. 

Member Valerie McNay asked if there was damage in the windstorm. 

Sharee commented that there was not any damage sustained. 

Member Valerie McNay asked if the pool was safe if the filtration system upgrades were on hold. 

Mr. Littrell deferred the answer to a colleague Sharee. Mr. McManus invited her to the microphone.  

Sharee commented that the chlorine sanitizes the water, but the water also has to be filtered. They use a diatomaceous earth filtration system that filters out particles. The type they have filters down to .4 microns which includes hair and band aids. 

Member Valerie McNay expressed concern about the virus and the swimming pool. 

Sharee commented that she heard chlorine and UV rays were some of the best protections against the virus and that she had been running the chlorine slightly higher since they reopened. 

Mr. McManus asked about a sanitation system that filters using UV light. 

Sharee commented that those filtration systems do exist. 

Member McNay asked Sharee to comment on public commenter Fred Voltz’s statistics about the pool.

Sharee commented that his facts did not sound accurate and she was not sure where he got them from. 

Member Valerie McNay stated it was important for the public to have accurate information. 

Mr. McManus asked Mr. Littrell what replastering work had been done.

Mr. Littrel stated that some replastering had been done. That they used $6,500 out of a $40,000 budget. 

Julie Calloway stated that the reason they used just $6,500 was because they budgeted $40,000 for the entire pool to be replastered. They did not have nearly enough money when the estimate came back so they replastered the areas in the worst shape. They did as much as they could at the time. 

Mr. McManus asked if Julie remembered the estimated cost to redo the entire pool.

Julie Calloway stated she did not. 

4. For possible action:  Discussion and direction regarding retaining a
    Consultant to provide their professional opinion on repairing the existing               aquatic facility.

Public Works Mr.  Littrell, discussed hiring a consultant to do an analysis of mechanical, electrical, and structural analysis of the existing pool which was approved by the Council. They received 8 Request for Proposals (RFP) but one was disqualified. They ranked all 7 and came up with two or three that would have been worth bringing in for interviews. Mr. Littrell stated that the range of quotes was $21,000 to $33,000 to conduct the analysis and he wanted guidance as to whether they could move forward with the interviews. He would confirm that the original estimates would still hold before moving forward. 

Mr. McManus invited any other comments or questions. He then asked the request for the proposal on what the current condition of the pool and what it would take to put the pool in good condition and wondered if it addressed anything else. 

Mr.  Littrell responded that it would be facility-wide and then providing their estimate on what it would take to bring the pool up to useable standards. 

Mr. McManus inquired what kind of firms would do the evaluation: architecture? Engineering?  

Mr.  Littrell responded saying mainly engineering or a combination of architecture and engineering. 

Member David Cohen expressed confusion as to why they would pay a firm to come in to bid on the job. He said usually firms are not paid to bid on a job, they are paid to do a job. He wondered if they could come in and look over the citation without having to pay them all the money to give them their proposal. He used the example of taking a car into the shop where you are given an estimate of how much the job would cost before paying. 

Mr.  Littrell replied saying that they expect to get a detailed report and analysis. 

Member David Cohen wondered again why they cannot find a firm that does both the estimate and the repairs. He referenced money spent previously that seemed wasted.

Mr.  Littrell replied that the firm that does the evaluation is not usually the same company that does the repairs. 

Member David Cohen stated he wants them to find value for the money.

Mr. McManus clarified that the money spent before was on a conceptual design that was rejected by voters. 

Mr.  Littrell stated that SH Architecture provided an estimate to rebuild the pool for $10-$12 million, but it was not a detailed analysis. With the new proposal they hope to have a detailed and accurate analysis for the new pool.

Member Carol Jefferies stated that the minutes approved earlier in the session contain the discussion of retaining a consultant to evaluate if rebuilding the pool was even feasible. Her opinion is that the person doing the evaluation should be different than the person completing the project so there is no conflict of interest. 

Mr.  Littrell agreed. The company they selected would do the analysis and then another company would complete the job. His opinion is that having two different companies is the better way to get the best, most honest, results.

Member Valerie McNay expressed concern at the cost. Her impression was that they wanted to verify that the repairs would be so costly that it might be impossible to do. She wondered if there were parts that could be done in-house and that the other money could be put towards the new facility. 

Mr.  Littrell stated that they do not have the ability to do a thorough report in-house on the pool as none of them are engineers or mechanics. 

Mr. McManus stated that he understands that the money is not small but compared to 30 million dollars for the new facility, it is not much. His opinion is that it is worth it to get professional evaluations; plus, there are two ballot questions that are being proposed in financing the pools. The ballot question was defeated last time and the feedback he received from voters last time is that they believed the cost of 40 million for the new facility was out of line - that is why it did not get approved.  They are the ones that have to decide if it is worth doing repairs or doing a replacement. The voters will ultimately decide and if they do not have more information the ballot will likely have the same fate. 

Member Valerie McNay expressed her desire for them to think outside the box of cost-effective options that voters will support. 

Mr. McManus agreed that they want to come up with a solution voters will support. 

Julie Calloway referenced notes from a City Council meeting on February 11. In that meeting, hiring a professional to evaluate the pool was perceived as an important part of the process to gain the voters' trust. The goal in the end is to have a pool worthy of their community and that may take having professionals come in to provide information to the voters in a way they will understand. 

Mr. McManus stated the pool has been taken for granted for years. It is 40 years and they have to see what can be done with the pool. 

Member Terry Stevens observed that they also need to consider the length of time repairs might take. They may be able to build a pool in the same amount of time it would take to build a new one. 

Mr. McManus stated he thought they should make a recommendation to City Council to hire a consultant. 

Member Martin Rihel proposed that they should recommend to City Council that they retain a consultant. 

Julie Calloway asked Member Martin Rihel to put that in the form of a motion. 

Mr. McManus asked if anyone had any questions or comments before making the motion. 

Member Carol Jefferies stated she felt that this was important information to have so they could make decisions, but without concrete information, they were just wasting time. She said they may decide the figure is reasonable, but they do not know that without the information. She agreed that they should recommend to City Council to retain a consultant. 

Mr. McManus stated that this committee is to sunset, or complete its function, in December. If ballot questions are to be considered it will probably be done no later than January to make the June ballot. If the City Council believes there is value in extending the committee it may be extended, but the time they have is short. 

Member David Cohen sought clarification that the evaluation would provide an estimate for repairs and the new pool.

Mr.  Littrell clarified it was for repairs to the existing pool only.

Mr. McManus stated that if they looked back at proposals there were various price points. At one point there were inflation factors. He said they were not sure if numbers were going up or down.

Mr.  Littrell stated that he has received many calls from contractors looking for work. 


Mr. McManus stated there is funding now but the revenue may experience a significant drop off. 


Motion:  Recommend to City Council to Retain Consultant.

Moved by:  Member Martin Rihel	Seconded by:  Member Carol Jefferies

AYE:  Chairman Kiernan McManus, Member Carol Jefferies, Member Martin Rihel, Member David Cohen, and Member Terry Stevens (5)

NAY:  Member Valarie McNay

5. For Possible action:  Discussion and staff directive regarding future agenda          items.

Mr. McManus asked for recommendations for items on future agendas and reminded them that the committee is set to sunset in December. He would like to see if there should be a recommendation to extend this council to March or April of next year since they lost six months with the virus. 

Member Martin Rihel asked if anyone is coming up with the proposal for the new pool that details what they are looking at exactly. 

Mr.  Littrell described a diorama he created and could bring to the meeting so they could visualize what it would look like in the complex. 

Mr. McManus stated that whatever the decision is, they want to know how the pool would fit into the complex now. 

Member Terry Stevens suggested adding the diorama and new pool layout to the next agenda.

Member Carol Jeffries asked Mr.  Littrell when the council would receive the evaluation. If they do not get that before the end of the year the council would want to know. 

Mr.  Littrell stated he gets approval to do the interviews from City Council on October 8, and then schedule the interviews as soon as possible and then it may take 30-60 days on the short end to get the proposal done.   

Mr. McManus stated that he would like a refresher on what had been formerly discussed about what kind of new pool they would like: how many lanes, size, depth, etc. 

Julie Calloway stated that information could be sent in a report. 

Member Martin Rihel observed that they are short on time to come up with a design, the estimate for repair, etc. To get the ballot questions to the voters they need to be submitted months before. His opinion is they need to discuss the design next meeting. 

Julie Calloway stated that on February 11, 2020 the ad hoc pool committee went to City Council for approval to hire a consultant and the other was a recommendation to draft up ballot questions. She asks if the committee wanted to request the drafting of ballot questions on Oct. 8th when Mr.  Littrell attends the City Council meeting. 

Mr. McManus responded that the ballot questions have been worded and a recommendation could be made but he is not sure they are ready yet. The term “drafting the ballot questions” triggers a process in which City clerks engage to get things ready for the election department. He suggests they put it on the agenda to discuss the next meeting.

Julie Calloway stated that for the next meeting they will come up with the amenities and specs for the new facility and consider Mr.  Littrell’s diorama. They will discuss the ballot questions as well as recommending that this committee be extended. 

Member Carol Jeffries stated that it would be very hard to move forward in the mind of the citizens without the information on estimates of how much the pool repairs might cost.

Mr. McManus replied that he agreed but that they have to move forward and not worry about where the ballot questions get decided as they might end up in a special election. 

Member Valerie McNay stated that the City Council in February was voted down. She stated that the ballot questions were just about putting money into a savings account for repairs or something new.

Mr. McManus clarified that it is a savings account but that it takes money from solar leases, from land sales, etc. He remembered, as a member of City Council, that money gets taken and dedicated to a source. In February it was voted down because things were so uncertain. They were not sure if they would need those funds to pay the police, or firefighters because they were not sure what would be in store as far as revenue goes. Once voters decide that money gets dedicated to a source. Things are currently not clear. Something might happen this fall where the economy goes off the rails.

Member Valerie McNay stated that they have stable capital improvement funding. 

Mr. McManus reiterated that if voted on the money would be taken and dedicated to certain projects. 

Member Martin Rihel stated that this city is the most financially secure in the county and that we can proceed with the recommendations without worrying that we will not have money to fund the police, etc. 

Mr. McManus stated how fortunate they are because they did not become dependent on gaming tax as so many other municipalities had. He asks Julie Calloway to recap the agenda items. 

Julie Calloway read the upcoming agenda items: discussing the possibility of extending the lifespan of the committee, discussing the list of recommendation of the new facility including information from past meetings and community input as well as including Mr.  Littrell, discussing future ballot questions and the potential of moving forward with those, and in the past, they have had future agenda items listed.

Mr. McManus suggested “future agenda items” should be a standing recurring agenda item. He then invited any other suggestions.

Member Valerie McNay asked if there were ways to go about requesting more donations for the pool.

Mr. McManus suggested starting a non-profit. He then opened the meeting to public comment. 

6. Public Comment:  

	Fred Voltz Called in.  He requested that his comments be added to the                 record verbatim (attached).

There being no further business to discuss, Chairman McManus adjourned the meeting at 5:16pm. 

____________________________________
Kiernan McManus, Chairman


ATTEST:


____________________________________
Julie Calloway, Parks and Recreation Manager
September 15, 2020 Municipal Pool Ad Hoc Committee Meeting     1
